
 

510 Green Bay Road, Winnetka, Illinois 60093 
Administration and Finance (847) 501-6000 Fire (847) 501-6029 Police (847) 501-6034 

Community Development (847) 716-3520 
Public Works (847) 716-3568 Water and Electric (847) 716-3558 

WINNETKA LANDMARK PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 

NOTICE OF RESCHEDULED MEETING  
 

The regular meeting scheduled for July 4, 2016 has been rescheduled for  
Thursday, July 14, 2016 

7:30 p.m. 
The rescheduled regular meeting of the Winnetka Landmark Preservation Commission will 
convene on Thursday, July 14, 2016 in the Council Chamber at the Winnetka Village Hall, 510 
Green Bay Road, Winnetka, Illinois, at 7:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 
1. Call to order. 

 

2. Approval of May 16, 2016 meeting minutes. 
 

3. Approval of June 6, 2016 meeting minutes. 
 

4. Review of the Alteration of Designated Landmark 510 Green Bay Rd. (Village Hall). 
 

5. Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the single family residence 
at 74 Brier St.  Case No. 16-14. 

 

6. Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the single family residence 
at 949 Spruce St.  Case No. 16-15. 

 

7. Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the single family residence 
at 333 Willow Rd.  Case No. 16-16. 

 

8. Review of the Historical Architectural Impact Study (HAIS) for the single family residence 
at 1035 Sheridan Rd.  Case No. 16-11. 

 

9. Review of the Historical Architectural Impact Study (HAIS) for the single family residence 
at 560 Oak St.  Case No. 16-12. 

 

10. Old Business. 
 

11. New Business. 
 

12. Adjournment. 
 
Note:  Public comment is permitted on all agenda items. 
 

The Village of Winnetka, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, requests that all persons with 
disabilities, who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting or have 
questions about the accessibility of the meeting or facilities contact the Village ADA Coordinator at 510 Green Bay 
Road, Winnetka, Illinois 60093, (Telephone (847) 716-3543; T.D.D. (847) 501-6041). 



DRAFT 
 

LANDMARK PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MAY 16, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Members Present:   Louise Holland, Chairperson 

Chris Enck  
Paul Weaver 

     Beth Ann Papoutsis 
 
Non-Voting Member Present: Andrew Cripe   
 
Members Absent:    Laura Good 

Anne Grubb 
Brian Wolfe 

 
Village Staff:    Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant  
 
Call to Order: 
Chairperson Holland called the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairperson Holland welcomed Andrew Cripe who is the liaison trustee to the Commission.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any changes to be made to the February 1, 2016 
meeting minutes.  She stated that she would later refer to the New Business section and then 
asked for a motion.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Weaver and seconded by Ms. Papoutsis to approve the February 1, 
2016 meeting minutes.  A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any changes to be made to the March 7, 2016 meeting 
minutes.  No comments were made at this time.  She then asked for a motion.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Weaver and seconded by Ms. Papoutsis to approve the March 7, 
2016 meeting minutes.  A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed. 
 
Chairperson Holland then asked if there were any changes to be made to the April 4, 2016 
meeting minutes.  No comments were made at this time.  She then asked for a motion.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Enck and seconded by Mr. Weaver to approve the April 4, 2016 
meeting minutes.  A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed. 
 
Review of the Historical Architectural Impact Study (HAIS) for the Single Family 
Residence at 315 Poplar St.  Case No. 16-04.                                                                                          



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 2 

  
Susan Benjamin from Benjamin Historic Certifications provided the presentation to the 
Commission.  She described the home as a wonderful home to do research on.  Ms. Benjamin 
stated that the information included the abstract of title which she described as a good launching 
pad in addition to the material which she would provide to the Commission.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that the property came under the ownership of Frank Alles between 1871 
and 1875.  She then referred the Commission to an 1876 plat which showed the distribution of 
homes in the neighborhood at the time.  Ms. Benjamin stated that there were not a lot and that 
she is pretty sure with regard to the dates of some of the homes, although they were altered a 
great deal, were similar in time.  Ms. Benjamin also referred to the abstract of title with land 
passed through Walter Gurnee who was the president of the railroad and owned a huge amount 
of land in Glencoe, Winnetka and throughout the North Shore along his railroad as development 
of his real estate.  She also referred to the Garland Subdivision which passed to a subsequent 
owner and then to Frank Alles.  Ms. Benjamin stated that they also did research at the Cook 
County Recorder of Deeds which substantiated what they already knew.  
 
Ms. Benjamin then stated that when she went to check something at Ancestry.com that someone 
put more information up and that they found a photograph of Frank Alles.  She informed the 
Commission that he was born around 1845 or 1847 and that he was from Trier  in Germany 
which was on one of the census tracts.  She also stated that he was a veteran of the Civil War and 
that at the time he died in 1940, he was the oldest living person from the Civil War living in 
Wilmette.  Ms. Benjamin then referred the Commission to a copy of the enlistment in the Civil 
War in 1864.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that with regard to another copy of the census records from 1880, she noted 
that he did not live in the home very long and that this substantiated the fact that he lived in 
Winnetka but that it does not have an address.  She stated that by the time he built a home, there 
was a substantially smaller amount of land on the lot as it is today.  
 
Ms. Benjamin informed the Commission that as she went through the census tracts, she found an 
article in The Tribune stating that after he moved, he moved to Wilmette and then in 1889, he 
was working for the gas company and that he left the home and did not come back for 20 years. 
She then stated that during the time that he was gone, his wife filed as a widow receiving $12 per 
month as a subsidy and that he went to Placer in California on a gold rush.  Ms. Benjamin stated 
that while he was there, he registered to vote and claimed that he was single.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that she then looked up Placer and identified it as a mountain range on a 
gold rush which she commented was a strange place to live and that there were 50 mines which 
were listed online.  She also stated that the census tract listed his wife as being from Ireland and 
that she was actually from Germany. 
 
Ms. Benjamin then identified the subsequent owners and commented that it is interesting to see 
what they did in terms of various jobs including him being listed as a laborer which was his 
professional career until he died in the 1940’s.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that when you look at the home, it is difficult to identify a stylistic way to 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 3 

  
describe it and referred to it as a vernacular home which she commented that it is just as 
important to do a history on as well as high style homes.  She stated that these vernacular homes 
are scattered throughout the Village and that she found three in the neighborhood.  Ms. Benjamin 
then stated that it is a common building type which is a more sophisticated style as a Greek 
Revival.  She referred the Commission to the t-shaped plan of the home on the early Sanborn 
map of 1914 and stated that the home was a t-shape plan with two porches and indicated that a 
lot of the two sections of the home were original.  Ms. Benjamin stated that the elements which 
would date to this time period would be the two-over-two windows, the gable roof on the wing to 
the roof and the wood mold over the windows.  She added that by 1938, there had been a lot of 
changes to the home with the porches being filled in and the home had been vastly expanded in 
terms of its footprint.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that with regard to the different facades with regard to the way that the 
home looks today, she identified the vestibule to the right and the section peeking over the 
vestibule and the area to the left which is original and added that the shutters are not original.  
She also identified the view of the home as it appeared from the north and referred to the shed 
dormer which may have been taken out at some time.  Ms. Benjamin also identified the peak 
gable and the two-over-two portions of the windows which were maintained. She also referred to 
the east elevation and the peak of the gable which may be original. Ms. Benjamin then stated that 
to the south and left is an addition.  Ms. Benjamin also referred to the cellar entrance from that 
façade.  She also identified the family room addition as well as a sitting room off of the master 
bedroom.  
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that on the interior of the home, she identified the vestibule at the entry and 
living room and that at some point, someone had done some Colonial things to it and that they 
did not find any permits.  She identified the glass doors and fireplace as having some Colonial 
inspirational.  Ms. Benjamin also identified the dining room which is entered through the 
bookcases and the porch section under the dormer which was filled in and changed over time.  
She then identified the kitchen and family room addition with the sliding doors leading out to a 
patio. 
 
Ms. Benjamin identified the stairs leading to the upstairs bedrooms and the master bedroom suite 
which consisted of doors opening into the addition and the skylight and bathroom which was an 
addition as well.   
 
Ms. Benjamin stated that in terms of the surrounding neighborhood, she stated that it is smaller 
than the Colonial home on the upper right corner of an illustration immediately across the street.  
She then maintained that the home on Poplar beneath is very old and was added to many times.  
Ms. Benjamin described that home as comparable in time to the home in this study.   
 
Ms. Benjamin also stated that the home in the left lower corner is another Colonial home which 
dated to 1999 and fit in the neighborhood which was done by Myefski Cook.  She then identified 
the home on the upper left corner as the home immediately next door to the subject home.  Ms. 
Benjamin went on to identify other homes in the neighborhood. She then stated that if you were 
to follow Poplar around, you would see the sequence of homes on the south side of Orchard 
Lane.  Ms. Benjamin stated that on the other side of the street, you find the same thing and 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 4 

  
identified the bungalow arts and crafts home which has been added to as well as the home 
adjacent to it which she described as somewhat Colonial at 507 Orchard.  She also stated that 
557 Orchard dated from this time period and that she did not do a lot of research to confirm that.   
 
Ms. Benjamin informed the Commission that the integrity of the home has been compromised 
and that documenting its history is important.  She also stated that she is glad that she had the 
opportunity to do the research and that it would make a nice addition to the Historical Society 
records.  Ms. Benjamin concluded by stating that the integrity of the home has been seriously 
compromised and that they felt that to document its record is important.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any questions.  No questions were raised by the 
Commission at this time.   
 
A gentleman in the audience described the report as very interesting. 
 
Chairperson Holland stated that before the Commission could vote on the demolition, they had to 
go through their impact determination review in accordance with the Village code and they have 
to issue findings on the following issues.  She stated that the first finding related to whether the 
HAIS is complete and asked the Commission for their comments.   
 
The Commission found that the HAIS is complete. 
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the second finding related to whether the proposed demolition 
would have a significant negative effect on the architectural or historical impact on either the 
Village as a whole or on the immediate neighborhood.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the third finding related to whether the demolition should be 
delayed in order to explore alternatives to total demolition.  She asked the Commission members 
for their comments.  Chairperson Holland then asked for a motion to determine that the HAIS is 
complete.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Weaver and seconded by Mr. Enck finding that the HAIS is 
complete.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that whether the proposed demolition would have a significant 
negative architectural or historical impact on the Village as a whole or on the immediate 
neighborhood and (c) whether demolition should be delayed in order to explore alternatives.  She 
then suggested that the Commission vote on whether there would be a significant architectural or 
historical impact on the Village as a whole or on the immediate neighborhood.  
 
Mr. Weaver moved that the demolition would not have a significant architectural or historical 
impact on the Village or the immediate neighborhood.  The motion was seconded by Ms. 
Papoutsis.  A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the third finding related to whether the demolition should be 
delayed in order to find alternatives to total demolition. 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 5 

  
Ms. Papoutsis referred to the comments made by Ms. Benjamin in the presentation and stated 
that no delay is necessary.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Weaver.  A vote was taken and the 
motion was unanimously passed.  
 
Chairperson Holland then stated that in making their determination, the Commission has to 
consider the following:  she stated that the HAIS is complete and very interesting.  She stated 
that the preliminary property history study which was the original application for demolition and 
no. 3 in connection with the comments from the Winnetka Historical Society and the HAIS and 
that the Historical Society’s response is that the home is likely one of the oldest of a dozen 
remaining in the Village.  She stated that the Historical Society stated that the ownership is well 
documented as one the Village’s earliest residences and that the Historical Society recommends 
that the HAIS be considered by the Commission to document the history of the home which has 
been done.  Chairperson Holland stated that any other information received by the Commission 
at the HAIS impact determination meeting or at the preliminary review and that the 
determination of the Commission shall be determined by findings of fact and record.   
 
Chairperson Holland then asked for a motion to grant the demolition for 315 Poplar Street, Case 
No. 16-04. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Enck and seconded by Mr. Weaver.  A vote was taken and the 
motion was unanimously passed.  
 
AYES:   Enck, Holland, Papoutsis, Weaver 
NAYES:  None 
NON-VOTING: Cripe 
 
Chairperson Holland stated that Corinne Krebs would be provided with a copy of the history of 
the home and thanked Ms. Benjamin for her presentation.   
 
Old Business 
Chairperson Holland stated that the trolley tour was enormously successful and that 72 people 
participated on the tour.   She also thanked Nan Greenough for her presentation as well as the 
Historical Society which provided registration.  Chairperson Holland stated that next year, there 
would only be one registrar and that they got a couple of double bookings.  She then stated that 
the trolley accommodated all of those who made a registration and that everyone enjoyed the 
tour. 
 
Mr. Enck asked if there was a wait list. 
 
Chairperson Holland responded that it is difficult to have a wait list and that people make plans.  
She then stated that they knew who was coming and that there were 36 people on each tour.  She 
then thanked Ms. Grubb who provided cookies in the shape of houses and the Village Council 
who provided the wherewithal for the Commission to have the tour with the trolley, the cookies 
and water.  Chairperson Holland stated that in their effort to educate the Village with the awards 
ceremony and the trolley tour, she described this year as being successful and that there may not 
have been as many this year as last year. 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 6 

  
Chairperson Holland then asked if there was any other old business. No additional old business 
was discussed at this time.  
 
New Business 
Chairperson Holland stated that she would like to return to the discussion and minutes of the 
February 1, 2016 meeting and that they have been discussing for a number of years when a home 
comes up for demolition and it has never been on the MLS, it has caused a lot of consternation 
among the members of the Commission because the neighborhood becomes very upset about the 
fact that the home has not been for sale.  She then stated that she would like to entertain a 
conversation and ask the Village Attorney to again look into the possibility of either for 60 days 
which is the same number of days they have for a delay that the Village can request a MLS 
listing of these homes.  She stated that it would not be for every home that comes before the 
Commission and informed the Commission that there would be a home coming before them in 
June which is a home that has been very well maintained and kept and that it is located on a main 
street in the Village and was never on the MLS.  She indicated that Mr. Birov may have knocked 
on their door.  Chairperson Holland stated that her concern is that the rest of the street may go 
that way as well.  She indicated that it would be a good exercise to have legal look at this and 
that she would ask Mr. Friedman to do it.   
 
Chairperson Holland then stated that Kathy Janega informed them that they cannot do that and 
that when someone owns a property, you either give them a demolition permit or you can ask for 
the delay if you can prove that there is historical value to the home which is difficult to prove but 
that it is an impact on the ambience of the community.  Chairperson Holland stated that if the 
MLS made the home noticed being for sale, that is different.  She then stated that it is a usually a 
home where the owners are deceased or do not want to be bothered if they live out of state and 
that this is not the case with regard to the home coming before them in June.  Chairperson 
Holland informed the Commission that the owners do not want to be bothered but that it would 
have a very negative impact.  She then stated that with the Commission’s approval, she would 
call Mr. Bahan and ask Mr. Friedman to look into it.  Chairperson Holland stated that it is 
changing the community and that Private Road has three or four new homes.  
 
Mr. Weaver stated that when they were discussing this at the last several meetings, they 
discussed the possibility of maybe seeing if the Historical Society Gazette could put a feature in 
and talk about a home that is for sale to generate interest. He informed the Commission that his 
wife is the editor of the Historical Society Gazette and indicated that it may not be the most 
practical way since the Gazette only comes out twice a year.  He referred to it as another idea 
that the Commission discussed as a way to get more publicity. 
 
Chairperson Holland stated that her concern related to the fact that Mr. Birov built homes with 
26 foot basements which is something that would affect a community that has a water problem. 
Chairperson Holland stated that it would be a good idea to bring the idea to the Village Council 
and that going to Mr. Bahan is the best idea.  She indicated that it may not save this home and 
that there is some history to the home and referred to a movie being made at the home which she 
described as interesting.  Chairperson Holland then stated that the movie producers rented a 
home at the top of the hill in connection with filming the movie and that the neighborhood 
appreciated their efforts.   



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                  May 16, 2016    
                Page 7 

  
Mr. Enck asked if Mary Brush was going to make a presentation at this meeting.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that she was informed at the last minute that was not going to happen and 
that now, they are attempting to come before the Commission in June.   She stated that they are 
looking at putting storm windows on the Village Hall.   
 
Chairperson Holland commented that she is glad that they recognized that the Village Hall is a 
landmark and that they have to come before the Commission.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m.  
    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Antionette Johnson,  
Recording Secretary 
 



DRAFT 
 

LANDMARK PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
JUNE 6, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Members Present:   Louise Holland, Chairperson 

Chris Enck  
Laura Good 
Anne Grubb 
Beth Ann Papoutsis  
Brian Wolfe 

 
Non-Voting Member Present: Andy Cripe 
 
Members Absent:    Paul Weaver 
 
Village Staff:    Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant  
 
Call to Order: 
Chairperson Holland called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m.  
 
TEARDOWNS -  
Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the Single Family 
Residence at 465 Sunset Rd. Case No.16-
10.                                                                                               
Chairperson Holland asked if the applicant is here.  
 
John Davis of 465 Sunset introduced himself to the Commission.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked Mr. Davis if he is requesting to demolish the home and build another 
home.  
 
Mr. Davis responded that he is selling his home to a builder who plans to demolish the home.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked when new construction would begin.  
 
Mr. Glenn Gutnayer, the applicant, stated that it would depend on when the permit is issued and 
that it may be submitted within two weeks.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the Historical Society research does not show that the home has 
historical significance or evidence of significant ownership. She asked the Commission if they 
had any questions.  
 
Ms. Grubb stated that she was looking at the photograph of the area to the left of the home. She 
asked if there is still construction going on near the home.  



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 2 

  
 
Mr. Davis stated that it almost done.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions.  
 
Ms. Papoutsis asked if the new home would have a similar footprint to the existing home.  
 
Mr. Davis stated that it would not and that it is a single lot with the lot next door having a lot and 
a half. He then stated that the new home would be in a similar location as the existing home but 
that it would be deeper. Mr. Davis added that the driveway would stay in the same location.  
 
A Commission member asked if the new home would be for a specific buyer.  
 
Mr. Gutnayer responded that it would be a spec home.  
 
A Commission member then asked if the home was on the MLS and if there was a chance for 
people to look at the home.  
 
Mr. Davis informed the Commission that the home was on the MLS for over a year.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions from the Commission. No 
additional questions were raised by the Commission at this time. She then asked if there were 
any questions from the audience. No questions were raised by the audience at this time. 
Chairperson Holland then asked for a motion.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Grubb and seconded by Mr. Wolfe to approve the demolition permit 
for 465 Sunset Road. A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.  
 
AYES:   Enck, Good, Grubb, Holland, Papoutsis, Wolfe 
NAYS:   None  
NON-VOTING: Cripe  
 
Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the Single Family 
Residence at 1035 Sheridan Rd. Case No. 16-
11.                                                                                             
Leo Birov introduced himself to the Commission.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked Mr. Birov if the home is a ranch home.  
 
Mr. Birov confirmed that is correct.  
 
Chairperson Holland commented that it is a nice home.  
 
A Commission member asked how many square feet are proposed for the new home.  
 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 3 

  
Mr. Birov stated that the property would be allowed approximately 14,000 square feet which is 
allowed by FAR, but he would be building much less. He referred to the amount of square 
footage on each floor.  
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions from the Commission.  
 
A Commission member asked about the footprint of the new home.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that there would be a lot of space between the homes.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if the home would have a 26 foot basement.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that portion of the basement would be under the garage.  
 
Chairperson Holland then asked if the home would not be moved closer to the bluff.  
 
Mr. Birov explained the location of the home for the Commission.  
 
A Commission member asked how many stories would the new home be.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that it would be a two story home.  
 
A Commission member asked if there are special requirements that would have to be met in 
connection with the bluff for Village approval.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that there are not any zoning regulations relating to the bluff.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions.  
 
A Commission member asked how would the home sit relative to the neighbors on either side.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that there would be more space on the left since the garage would be on the left 
side and that there would also be more space to the right. He also stated that the home would take 
up less of a footprint than the current home.  
 
A Commission member asked how would the home be oriented and if it would be north to south 
or east to west.  
 
Mr. Birov responded that there would be 27 feet from the north and reiterated that the garage 
would be on the left side. He then referred to the creation of space between the homes.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions from the Commission. No 
additional questions were raised by the Commission at this time. She then asked if there were 
any questions from the audience.  
 
Bob Scales, 1045 Sheridan Road, stated that the home to be demolished is part of a cul-de-sac of 
four homes and that the new home would be moved right in the path of two 150 year old oak 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 4 

  
trees. He stated that he is not sure of the legal standards that would be applied to these kinds of 
requests. Mr. Scales stated that his main concern related to the schedule and that there would be 
two years of construction in the cul-de-sac which he found to be unacceptable. He then referred 
to the home on Whitebridge which has been under construction for several years with fences, 
construction workers, etc. Mr. Scales stated that he did not know what the Commission’s task is 
and if it is to protect historic properties and whether this home would qualify for that. He stated 
that he would like to see some protection for the neighbors with regard to the construction that is 
taking place for these gargantuan homes going up. Mr. Scales also stated that the home was not 
listed on the MLS in its current state which he described as a beautiful home.  
 
Mary Keefe, 1045 Sheridan Road, informed the Commission that an award was given by the 
Commission to a home in the cul-de-sac which was built at the same time and by the same 
architect and that an historic preservation award was given to their home. She added that she 
wished that could have been done for the entire cul-de-sac. Mrs. Keefe then stated that they 
planted a garden and that they share a private road and that she is very concerned with the plants 
and trees which have been planted in that area. She stated that she is also concerned that the road 
would be destroyed and that the Fitzgeralds are also here who use that road and that she is 
concerned with regard to their ingress and egress.  
 
Mrs. Keefe also stated that she would like to see that there be some timeliness in connection with 
construction and that some bond be posted by the builder to ensure that if things are destroyed, 
they can go back to having a beautiful garden.  
 
A Commission member asked Mrs. Keefe where their home is located with regard to the subject 
property.  
 
Mrs. Keefe responded that they are to the west. She then identified the location of their home for 
the Commission as well as the location of the Fitzgeralds’ home.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the Commission’s ordinance did not allow them to put any 
restrictions on construction but that the Community Development Department does have the 
ability to address all of their concerns with regard to the garden and roadway. She then 
questioned whether the timeline would be two years for construction and that the materials 
indicated longer than that.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that they are permitted 15 months.  
 
Mr. Scales asked if Mr. Birov planned to address their concerns.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that they usually build homes in under one year.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the Community Development Department would receive those 
concerns from the Commission to factor in with the request for demolition. She then questioned 
the location of the two oak trees.  
 
Mr. Scales identified the location of the oak trees.  



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 5 

  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that Jim Stier, the Village Forester, would address that. She then 
asked if there were any other comments from the audience.  
Jill Fitzgerald, 1055 Sheridan Road, stated that she lives directly to the north of the subject 
property with the lake on one side and the bluff on the other. She informed the Commission that 
they have lived in the cul-de-sac longer than anyone else and that when they moved there, after 
five or 10 years, the people who lived in the home moved out and that when the people who 
moved in remodeled the home, part of their wall broke. Ms. Fitzgerald stated that there would be 
a big impact on erosion for her and that the driveway is not that wide. She stated that she also did 
not know where they would park the trucks and referred to the location of the ravine. Ms. 
Fitzgerald stated that it would impact their ingress and egress and that they have raised a big 
family here and that most of them have stayed here and love coming to their home. She stated 
that it is very upsetting that they are going to ruin everything although they say that they are not. 
She stated that they have all gotten along very well and that there has been a respectful 
relationship with the owners of the home. Ms. Fitzgerald then stated that the construction would 
not go according to the way that the builder says that it will and that they may turn around in her 
driveway. She stated that she could not hear all of the comments made by the applicant or the 
Commission and that she wanted to be sure that she is heard.  
 
John Fitzgerald, 962 Sheridan Road, informed the Commission that there is an adjoining wall 
and that there had been a remodeling of the home some years ago and that there was $50,000 
worth of damages by the builder. He then stated that this home is a lot higher than his mother’s 
home and that he is concerned for the grandchildren. Mr. Fitzgerald also stated that he is 
concerned that there are a lot of children in the area and referred to the trucks coming in and out 
of the area which he described as scary with all of the construction going on. He added that it is a 
very narrow driveway and that he could see there being a lot of trouble with this situation. Mr. 
Fitzgerald concluded by stating that it is a beautiful home.  
 
A Commission member asked Mr. Fitzgerald if he was aware that the home was being sold for 
demolition.  
 
Mr. Fitzgerald responded that he was not and that he is on Zillow and did not see the home for 
sale on that site.  
 
Ms. Fitzgerald informed the Commission that the owner, Jeanne Malkin, called her and referred 
to the amount of taxes being paid which she stated should demand respect and that they are not 
being respected.  
 
Chairperson Holland informed Ms. Fitzgerald that they rarely send the preliminary review on to 
the Community Development Department with comments but that on this home, they will have 
comments so that Mr. D’Onofrio will be sure to moderate what is happening and look very 
carefully and urged Mr. Birov to look at the difference in height between the two properties. She 
stated that she knew that he is very fond of particular heights and questioned where the storm 
sewer would go.  
 
Mr. Birov referred to the location of the storm sewer.  



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 6 

  
 
Chairperson Holland then stated that there is a lot of construction going on in the ravine because 
of the lack of the proper drainage for any of the homes that are on the bluffs. She stated that they 
would make sure that Mr. D’Onofrio received their remarks and that they would be made part of 
the minutes.  
 
Chairperson Holland then asked if there were any other comments from the Commission or the 
audience. No additional comments were made at this time. She then asked for a motion to 
approve the demolition of 1035 Sheridan Road.  
 
Ms. Papoutsis stated that it was brought to their attention that a home nearby received an award 
and that the architect was Henry Newhouse. She then asked if they knew of any other homes in 
Winnetka by Mr. Newhouse.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that a survey of the Village is not complete and referred to the home 
as being built in 1956. She again asked for a motion to grant the demolition application or for 
any further comments.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that Ms. Klaassen would relay the comments.  
 
Mr. Cripe noted that he is a non-voting member and informed the Commission that they just 
approved a study for the ravines with regard to the storm water issue. He stated that he is not sure 
when they are supposed to be reporting back to them in connection with the ravine study and 
stated that they want to make sure that Mr. Birov and their consultant are connected before that 
component is installed and that they would have to work together.  
 
Mr. Scales stated that the whole issue of drainage on the ravine has been very difficult and that 
they hired experts and engineers when the state wanted to take out a lot of the trees and flatten 
part of the ravine beneath their home.  He stated that they ultimately withdrew their request for 
an easement and modified their plans and that the idea that Mr. Birov is planning to put in some 
kind of sewage system that would go from that home down to Sheridan Road is ridiculous and 
that he cannot imagine how that would happen with the amount of construction and complexity it 
proposes. Mr. Scales also stated that is not the Commission’s issue and hoped that they would 
get notice of the next step of the plans which he commented would be immensely disruptive to 
the area as well as dealing with the state.  He reiterated that he hoped to be kept informed of the 
process.  
 
Chairperson Holland ensured Mr. Scales that his comments would go to Mr. D’Onofrio. She 
stated that they are already doing work in the ravines now.  
 
Mr. Scales informed the Commission that his property extended down to Sheridan Road.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the Commission gave an award to the home at 1045 Sheridan 
Road and that they are aware of the condition of the driveway and the fact that it is narrow. She 
stated that Mr. Birov would be required to keep their trucks on the property and that they cannot 
block the roadway. Chairperson Holland stated that trucks related to construction are so large 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 7 

  
that they cannot be parked on Sheridan Road and that there is no other way to do it and that she 
is sure that Mr. Birov would do it that way. She reiterated that their comments would be 
forwarded to the Community Development Department and that they check in with Mr. 
D’Onofrio and referred to the start date of September 19, 2016 so that they can follow the 
process of the application. Chairperson Holland again asked for a motion.  
 
Mr. Enck moved to grant the demolition permit for 1035 Sheridan Road.  
 
Ms. Papoutsis stated that there are a lot of issues here.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that they have discussed the architect, Mr. Newhouse and the fact 
that there were a lot of owners of the home. She noted that there is no house file from the 
Historical Society. She asked for a second to the motion. Chairperson Holland stated that you 
can see that they are not very happy with the demolition of this home.  
 
The motion was not seconded.  
 
Chairperson Holland then asked for a motion for an HAIS be required for 1035 Sheridan Road.  
 
Ms. Papoutsis stated that assuming that they granted an award for a home nearby and that they 
do not have a record, she felt that it would be necessary to require an HAIS.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked for another motion.  
 
Ms. Good moved to require an HAIS for 1035 Sheridan Road. The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Wolfe. A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed.  
 
AYES:   Enck, Good, Grubb, Holland, Papoutsis, Wolfe 
NAYS:   None  
NON-VOTING: Cripe  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that after the HAIS is done which should include the entire cul-de-
sac of four homes which would be discussed at their next meeting on July 5, 2016 and that if 
they felt that the HAIS is complete, they will then approve.  
 
Mr. Birov asked if he is to do an HAIS on all four homes.  
 
Chairperson Holland confirmed that the HAIS is to be done on 1035 Sheridan Road only.  
 
Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the Single Family 
Residence at 560 Oak St. Case No. 16-
12.                                                                                                    
Leo Birov informed the Commission that he has a contract on the property.  
 
The owner of the home, Richard French, was also present.  
 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 8 

  
Chairperson Holland then asked if the home has been listed for sale.  
 
Mr. Birov stated that the home was not listed on the MLS and that it was not required to be 
listed.  
A Commission member stated that the Commission wanted to know if the home had been listed 
so that people can be given the opportunity to buy it.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that they have two letters, one of which is from a neighbor on Poplar 
and asked if Mr. Finnerty is here.  
 
Mr. Finnerty was not present.  
 
Chairperson Holland then asked if they planned to demolish the home in November.  
 
Mr. Birov confirmed that is correct.  
 
Ms. Holland stated that is all that she can say since she lives within 250 feet of the property.  
 
Mr. Birov referred to the home at 610 Oak which he built.  
 
Acting Chairperson Grubb stated that the Historical Society stated that the home does not show 
evidence of architectural significance or significant ownership. She then asked if they had to read 
the letters.  
 
Ms. Holland stated that they did not.  
 
Chairperson Grubb asked if there were any comments.  
 
Ben Lenhart, 777 Bryant, stated that he and his wife have lived there since 1980. He informed 
the Commission that his wife, Cindy, grew up at 560 Oak Street and that the home was built in 
1938 by Jim Hemphill who he described as one of the more substantial and good builders in 
Winnetka at that time. Mr. Lenhart stated that his wife’s parents bought the home in 1953 and 
lived there until 1973. He described Oak Street as a lovely street and a lovely part of a lovely 
town but that he is disturbed by all of the actions going on.  
 
Mr. Lenhart stated that this home is a Colonial Revival home which was popular at that time 
period and that it is a very substantial home. He stated that the home has been added to by 
purchasers of the home and that it now measures approximately 5,000 square feet which he 
described as being built like a fortress. Mr. Lenhart stated that his question is why would 
someone not like to save this home. He indicated that it may be need to be refreshed inside and 
out but asked what is wrong with good, solid homes in Winnetka which are a part of the fabric of 
the community. He also asked why do they have to tear them down.  
 
Mr. Lenhart informed the Commission that he spends winters in Charleston, South Carolina and 
that they do not let this kind of nonsense go on. He stated that people go to Charleston and love it 
and that you would see what is there for the rest of your lives which made that city so special. 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 9 

  
Mr. Lenhart stated that they are destroying Winnetka, not only by the actions of Mr. Birov, but 
also by many other builders. He stated that this is not an attack on Winnetka but that Winnetka 
must be saved. Mr. Lenhart asked the Commission do whatever they can to delay the demolition 
of the home and for reconsideration.  
Chairperson Grubb asked if there were any other comments.  
 
Mr. Enck stated that he also agreed with Mr. Lenhart’s comments and that as they have stated in 
past meetings, Mr. Birov stated that there is no requirement to have a home listed on the MLS 
but for a home like this which is in reasonably good condition and for the cost of a new home, 
one could spend a lot less money renovating a home like this and have it to be an asset to the 
community. He stated that they have seen homes like these come before the Commission many 
times and that they were not given the opportunity to be offered to potential buyers intact. He 
also stated that with the strong presence of developers in the community, this happens time and 
time again and that the Commission is limited as to what they can do. He then stated that he 
disagreed with the Historical Society’s comments and that he would like to see the home 
documented to record the history of the home, the architect and the builder.  
 
Ms. Good stated that she also agreed and asked for the owner to identify himself.  
 
The owner introduced himself as Richard French.  
 
Ms. Good then referred to the letter from Michael Finnerty who stated that they have interest in 
saving the home and that they have lived in the home for decades and would be willing to work 
with them to purchase the home and rehab it for sale if they were able to come to agreeable 
terms. She then asked Mr. French if he knew the letter existed.  
 
Mr. French confirmed that he read the letter. He informed the Commission that they analyzed the 
issue very carefully with regard to whether rehabbing the home made sense. Mr. French also 
stated that they looked at one of the homes down the street which had thorough rehabilitation 
done to it and that it has been on the market for 8 months. He then stated that for what Mr. Birov 
is willing to pay them, they do not have a broker who would get commission and referred to the 
cost of rehabbing the home and concluded that there is no way they would do as well as they are 
doing by selling it to Mr. Birov. Mr. French stated that he wanted the Commission to understand 
that the decision was not made lightly and that he agreed with the comments made that it would 
be great to rehabilitate it but that in terms of making an economic decision, they would not 
rehabilitate the home.  
 
Mr. French also referred to the types of homes that the young professionals are looking for these 
days. He referred to the days at the beginning of his law career and the fact that he still liked the 
home and questioned what people today are looking for which he described as the open concept. 
He stated that there is no way that the home could be made into an open concept home. Mr. 
French stated that in looking at the economics of the matter, it did not make sense to try to 
rehabilitate the home and cover all of the costs associated with it along with the amount of time it 
would take. He added that the timing worked out with Mr. Birov’s transaction for them 
personally. Mr. French stated that there is one question before this Commission which is whether 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 10 

  
the home has historical or architectural significance and that the answer is no. He asked if there 
were any other questions.  
 
Ms. Good stated that the letter stated that it would not require him to rehab it and that this 
particular gentleman, Mr. Finnerty, would be willing to buy the home and do the rehab himself if 
they could come up with similar terms and asked Mr. French if he would be open to that.  
 
Mr. French responded that they have a contract with Mr. Birov and referred to any delay that can 
be issued.  
 
Mr. Birov commented on the status of the contract and the Commission’s concerns with him as 
the builder and whether the home could be sold to someone else.  
 
Ms. Good stated that the contract can be canceled and a negotiation worked out.  
 
Chairperson Grubb stated that the Commission can make a motion to continue the preliminary 
hearing for 30 days until July 5, 2016 to give them time to think about this. She also stated that 
they have a letter from Kirk Hoopingarner.  
 
Kirk Hoopingarner informed the Commission that he is representing Mary Allen who is living 
currently at 550 Oak Street and who has lived in the home for 50 years. He stated that Ms. Allen 
called him about a week ago and was very concerned about this and that they are trying to see if 
there is a possibility to work with the developer recognizing that there was a contract which Ms. 
Allen has no intention of interfering with her neighbor’s ability to sell their property which he 
noted for the record. Mr. Hoopingarner then asked whether Mr. Birov would be interested in 
selling the home to another party recognizing that he is a businessman. He then stated that his 
colleague, Rob Gamrath had a nice conversation with the builder to talk about this. Mr. 
Hoopingarner informed the Commission that they are in the early stages of seeing if this is an 
option and that if it is going to go through, if the Commission decides to approve this, they look 
forward to making sure that the safety and other issues which were raised are addressed and are 
carried out. He also stated that there is a very big tree on the property and that they would like to 
work with the builder to save it.  
 
Mr. Hoopingarner stated that on the emotional side, Ms. Allen has looked out of her window at 
this home for many years and has enjoyed the oak tree and neighbors. He described her as a 
wonderful person and that she would find the idea of all of that change disturbing and 
disappointing and that although she is a realist, they are trying to find a way to make the best of 
the situation. Mr. Hoopingarner stated that it is a privilege to represent Ms. Allen and her family 
and appreciated the Commission’s thoughtfulness in reviewing the situation and that they do not 
want to interfere with the owner’s ability to do what they want to do and that they understand the 
contractual terms of the owner and the builder as they have described. He stated that if it is not 
possible to work with the builder, they want to ensure that everything that is possible is done to 
protect the property and noted that her driveway ran along the right side of the property as well 
as the fact that there is a shared fence. Mr. Hoopingarner stressed that they are trying to do what 
is right and be respectful of everyone’s rights. He stated that they would like for additional time 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 11 

  
since this has come as a big shock to Ms. Allen to review and talk things out in a constructive 
and civil way.  
 
Ethan Holland, 510 Poplar, stated that he lived around the corner from the subject property and 
that his family lived across the street from the home for 46 years and that his mother still lived in 
the home. He stated that he is here to support Ms. Allen who has been his neighbor since he was 
two years old. Mr. Holland stated that he hoped that Mr. Birov could come to some conclusion 
and that he understood that Mr. Birov is a businessman. He then stated that at the same time, he 
stated that he appreciated that the applicant wanted to get the maximum dollars for his home. Mr. 
Holland stated that if there is another buyer out there who is willing to save the property, he 
stated that sometimes, money is not the most important thing and referred to the character of the 
Village. He stated that is the reason he moved back to the Village with his family 10 years ago 
and stressed that everyone here appreciated the character of Winnetka and that he hoped that it is 
maintained.  
 
Chairperson Grubb asked if there were any other comments.  
 
Mr. Lenhart referred back to his comments in connection with Charleston and stated that what 
has happened in Charleston has just happened in that people come together and see that there is a 
problem and try to work things out. He stated that he has heard that there is the potential that Mr. 
Birov and the seller and a potential third party could work something out where you can save 
something, which is what preservation is all about. Mr. Lenhart then stated that he commended 
this group and hoped that all of the parties can make this happen.  
 
Chairperson Grubb asked if there were any other comments.  
 
Ms. Good stated that it was mentioned that the Commission has one decision to make and that is 
whether or not this home has significance or has historic significance. She stated that technically, 
that may be true and that they have talked about in the past the importance of contributing 
buildings and that a building in and of itself may not have architectural or historical significance, 
but that building does contribute to the general character of the properties around the 
neighborhood. Ms. Good stated that is being expressed tonight and that she loved the Charleston 
analogy and that when she moved to the Village 10 years ago, it is a totally different town now. 
She stated that there is a lot of opportunity for teardown and that there are a lot of business 
people here and that the fabric of the town is being stripped away slowly but surely. Ms. Good 
stated that she agreed that they have the potential here and that they have the potential of 
working with the parties here. She stated that she agreed that they are not trying to stop a sale or 
contract but that if they can open up the channels of communication and opportunity, it is a way 
for a builder to show their flexibility when the Village steps forward and says that there is a 
problem with this and an opportunity for the builder to do the right thing and elevate the respect 
that they have toward that particular builder.  
 
Chairperson Grubb stated that aside from asking for an HAIS, they can also table the request for 
30 days and continue the review of the property and what can be done with it.  
 
Ms. Holland questioned whether there would be a quorum at the next meeting.  



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 12 

  
 
Chairperson Grubb then asked for a motion to continue the preliminary review for 30 days.  
 
A Commission member asked if there was a continuance and there is not a quorum at the next 
meeting, what would happen.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that it did not appear that there would be a quorum. She stated that it would 
be approved and that the Commission would then waive its right to review the application.  
 
Ms. Good asked if it is that particular week that made it an issue for everyone and whether they 
could change the meeting to another date.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that they have 60 days to review the application from the date it is filed and 
that they are trying to have one meeting in July. She stated that it would be at the July meeting 
which is scheduled for July 5, 2016. Ms. Klaassen stated that the application would have to be 
reviewed within 60 days from when it was submitted which would have to be by July 5th.  
 
A Commission member asked about the prior week.  
 
Ms. Klaassen responded that the goal is to schedule one meeting in July.  
 
Mr. Wolfe asked about a telephonic meeting.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that they could not do that.  
 
Mr. Cripe stated that procedurally, they have the facts which are not going to change between 
now and then and that if there is not going to be a quorum, the outcome is going to be the same.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that they have to keep in mind that the parties involved still have those lines 
communications even if they are required to do an HAIS.  
 
A Commission member asked if the closing is in October.  
 
Mr. French responded that the closing has to be on or before October 31, 2016.  
 
A Commission member asked if an HAIS is prepared, would it be reviewed at the July or August 
meeting.  
 
Ms. Klaassen stated that technically because the July meeting has not been scheduled because of 
the holiday, the deadline would be June 17, 2016 and that it is possible that they could have the 
HAIS done in time for the July meeting.  
 
A Commission member asked if it is usually two months.  
 
Ms. Klaassen confirmed that is correct.  
 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 13 

  
Chairperson Grubb then asked for a motion for an HAIS to be done for 560 Oak.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Papoutsis and seconded by Ms. Good to require that an HAIS for 
560 Oak. A vote was taken and the motion was unanimously passed.  
 
AYES:   Enck, Good, Grubb, Holland, Papoutsis, Wolfe 
NAYS:   None  
NON-VOTING: Cripe  
 
Preliminary Review of the Application for Demolition Permit of the Single 
Family Residence at 987 Asbury Ct. Case No. 16-13.                                 
   
Matt Hines introduced himself to the Commission as the owner of the property. He stated that he 
purchased the property and that a real estate agent thought that it was a teardown. Mr. Hines 
stated that as far as he could tell, there is nothing special about the home and that it is a ranch 
home on a slab. He stated that he does have a builder and that they have submitted plans to the 
Village.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked Mr. Hines if he planned to build a two story home.  
 
Mr. Hines confirmed that is correct.  
 
Chairperson Holland stated that the Historical Society stated that there is no architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership.  She asked the Commission for their 
comments.  
 
Ms. Grubb referred to the huge tree in the front with the ribbon on it.  
 
Mr. Hines informed the Commission that the tree would have to come down and that they would 
be moving the home further back on the property. He also stated that there are no trees in the rear 
of the property and that they cannot build the new home in the same location as the existing 
home since they have to match the setback of the other homes in the cul-de-sac.  
 
Chairperson Holland asked if there were any other questions. No additional questions were made 
at this time. She then asked for a motion to grant the demolition request for 987 Asbury Court.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Grubb and seconded by Ms. Good to grant the demolition permit for 
987 Asbury.  
 
Discussion of 2016 Preservation Awards Program  
Chairperson Holland stated that the preservation awards judging would be on June 12, 2016 at 
10:00 a.m. and stated that they have seven applications. She informed the Commission members 
where they would meet and that they would go to each home. Chairperson Holland stated that it 
may take a couple of hours.  
 



Draft Landmark Preservation Commission Minutes                     June 6, 2016    
                 Page 14 

  
Chairperson Holland then referred to an article for a home in Normal, Illinois that has been 
restored.  
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Chairperson Holland asked if there was any old business. No old business was discussed by the 
Commission at this time.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Chairperson Holland asked if there was any new business. No new business was discussed by the 
Commission at this time.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Antionette Johnson,  
Recording Secretary 



1 

 

Village of Winnetka 

Memo 
To: Landmark Preservation Commission 

From: Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

Date: July 6, 2016 

Re: 510 Green Bay Rd., Village Hall Landmark Alteration Review  

The Village is seeking the Commission’s advisory review to install new storm 
windows on Village Hall.  Please see the attached agenda report for details.   

Section 15.64.060 Alteration of designated landmarks is attached to assist in the 
review of the proposed alteration.  The LPC is required to complete an advisory 
review of an alteration of an exterior feature of a designated landmark.  According to 
the design guidelines provided in the referenced section of the Village Code, 
architectural details should be compatible with the original architectural style or 
character of the designated landmark. 

 

 



AGENDA REPORT 

 

SUBJECT:  Village Hall Storm Windows Project 

PREPARED BY: Megan E. Pierce, Assistant to the Village Manager  
   

DATE:    July 5, 2016 

 
Project Background 
The installation of new storm windows was the second of the significant remaining projects to be 
addressed following the completion of the Village Hall renovation in 2012. All of the interior 
and exterior entrance doors were restored in 2015/2016. Storm window project funding was 
included in the Village’s fiscal year 2016 budget. In October 2015, the Village engaged Mary 
Brush, Brush Architects, LLC to assist with design and specification documents. We also elected 
to work with Ms. Brush again due to her familiarity with the Winnetka Village Hall, as she 
worked for Holabird & Root during the renovation project. She specializes in restoration work 
and historic preservation—helping us ensure we would achieve our building objectives as well as 
maintain the appearance of the locally landmarked Village Hall. 
 
On July 14, I will be at the Landmark Preservation Commission (LPC) meeting to present the 
Storm Windows Project. We would like the LPC’s concurrence on the selection of storms before 
proceeding to Council authorization for bidding the project. It is our goal to begin installation 
this fall. In the meantime, I would encourage LPC members to visit the Village Hall and view 
installed “mock-ups” of the storm windows described herein. All installations are located on the 
upper and lower south elevation of the building and easily viewable from the sidewalk or the 
south parking lot. 
 
Project Objective 
While the storm windows were not completed during the original renovation, they are an 
important component to the overall building and vital to address in the short-term. The windows 
themselves were restored to full operation and painted in the historic paint color, but without 
protection, they will weather much more quickly and maintenance issues will increase. Storm 
windows also provide valuable thermal protection and contribute to the efficient heating and 
cooling of the Village Hall throughout the year. The Hall windows are a single pane glass, and 
while beautiful, do not offer the full energy benefits and protections desired. Much time has been 
spent to determine the appropriate materials and storm window types that will meet these 
objectives and also enhance the aesthetic of the building. The scope of windows, as described in 
greater detail below, are an improvement that do not require substantially difficult maintenance 
by staff over the course of seasons.   

LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



Agenda Report 
Village Hall Storm Windows Project 
July 5, 2016 

2 

 
Project Scope 
It is important to keep in mind that storm windows are a temporary or reversible installation. We 
do not intend to make any permanent alterations to the building. The windows have already been 
restored to preservation standards. As part of the Storm Windows Project, we intend to make 
necessary repairs to the wood frames as well as perform touch-up painting. Overall, the Village 
wishes to undertake a maintenance project that will also improve upon the efficiency and 
appearance of the Hall. 
 
As outlined in Attachment #1, there are 78 windows that are part of the project scope. The 
windows are delineated by level, elevation, and location; Brush Architects has also shown the 
type of window to be installed and measurements. The second page of Attachment #1 reflects 
some of this project’s complexity. There are eight different window frame types (of various 
configurations) to be considered for storm window design. Storm windows have been planned 
for single windows and double hung windows; in addition, the transom single and double 
archtop and sidelights on the lower elevation could also have storm protection.  
 
Attachment #2 shows the various windows in the project scope within the context of the Village 
Hall. Please note that the glass above the east and west exterior vestibule doors are not included 
here as their restoration was addressed with the recently completed door project. Ms. Brush has 
already completed an initial review of each of these windows and performed measurements, all 
of which can be refined in the near future as part of the bidding process. 
 
Critically, the project team has identified a vendor who has significant project experience with 
historic properties and who specializes in unique storm windows. Allied Window, Inc. windows 
are custom-designed and crafted to not distract from historic buildings, while offering energy 
efficiencies, heating/cooling comforts, and decreased maintenance. These “invisible” storm 
windows are also made in a color that compliments the Village Hall. Allied Window, Inc. has 
demonstrated past experience on storm window projects for historic buildings such as Rawson 
House (Cincinnati, Ohio), Faneuil Hall (Boston, Massachusetts), and Monticello (Charlottesville, 
Virginia). Allied has provided Attachment #3—demonstrating product detail and material for the 
storm windows being recommended. 
 
As noted earlier, a local Winnetka contractor has assisted the project team by installing mock-
ups of the recommended storm window types. All of the mock-ups have been installed on the 
south elevation of the building. On the upper level, one double hung storm window has been 
installed with a screen. These storms will be fully operable and require minimal seasonal 
maintenance. The double hung storm window is shown below and in comparison to a window 
without a storm (on the right): 

LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



Agenda Report 
Village Hall Storm Windows Project 
July 5, 2016 

3 

 
 

 
 
On the lower level, several different types of storms have been installed. First, glass storms are 
shown in the middle portion of the large windows that also have transom arches and sidelight 
windows. The middle portion is shown as glass, but is removable and therefore would seasonally 
be replaced from the exterior with screens, so windows may be opened depending on space 
configurations and allowances within individual offices. Below, the storm installation is shown 
both far away, close-up, and then in comparison to a window with no storm windows (on the 
right): 
 

LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



Agenda Report 
Village Hall Storm Windows Project 
July 5, 2016 

4 

 
 

 
 

LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



Agenda Report 
Village Hall Storm Windows Project 
July 5, 2016 

5 

 
 
Also on the lower level, mock storm windows have been installed to demonstrate the appearance 
of the transom and sidelight windows. This treatment is a “clip” installation—meaning the 
storms do not come in and out regularly but can be removed. The pane also continues to provide 
the necessary protection to these very unique windows and the frames. As currently shown, the 
clip installation does not have perimeter sealant, in case it is determined that the sidelight and 
transom storm glazing is not desired.  The thermal and screen benefits will be most effective on 
the operable insignia casement windows of the first floor and the double hung windows of the 
second floor.  The clip fixed installation on the sidelights and archtop transoms is primarily a 
paint protection effort.     Samples of the clip installation are shown below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



Agenda Report 
Village Hall Storm Windows Project 
July 5, 2016 

6 

 
As the LPC presentation will be in the evening, I strongly encourage the Commission members 
to visit the Village Hall and take a close look at the installations during the daytime. Following 
our presentation to the LPC, we will seek Council approval of the bidding process by the end of 
summer. The storm windows would be installed in phases, which will be determined based on 
the timing of the project start. Fortunately, storm window installation is not as weather sensitive 
as was the door restoration project, and it will cause minimal interruption to staff workspace. 
However, some of the frame repair work needs to be performed in optimal weather conditions.  
  
Attachments  

• Attachment #1: Storm Window Detail Schedule and Window Types 
• Attachment #2: East/West and North/South Village Hall Elevation Detail 
• Attachment #3: Allied Window Product Detail 

LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



ATTACHMENT #1

LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

100 LEVEL FLOOR PLAN1
1/8"=1'-0"

N

4/A4-1

1/A4-1

1

2 2

33

4 4

TYP.
TYP.

PL
AC

E 
LA

B

N
AM

E 
AN

D
 L

O
CA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
ST

RU
CT

U
RE

:
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:

 

SH
EE

T.
 #

D
AT

E 
PR

IN
TE

D
:

TI
TL

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

M
AR

CH
 2

4,
 2

01
6

10
'-4

"
12

'-4
" 

FI
N

 F
L

11
'-8

" 
FI

N
 F

L
2'

-0
"

11
'-7

" 
FI

N
 F

L

WEST ELEVATION3
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

EAST ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"1

WEST ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"2 LPC 

Agenda Packet p. 11
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11

mpierce
Text Box
ATTACHMENT #2



PL
AC

E 
LA

B

N
AM

E 
AN

D
 L

O
CA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
ST

RU
CT

U
RE

:
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:

 

SH
EE

T.
 #

D
AT

E 
PR

IN
TE

D
:

TI
TL

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

M
AR

CH
 2

4,
 2

01
6

10
'-4

"
12

'-4
" 

FI
N

 F
L

11
'-8

" 
FI

N
 F

L
2'

-0
"

11
'-7

" 
FI

N
 F

L

SOUTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

PARTIAL SOUTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

10
'-4

"
12

'-4
" 

FI
N

 F
L

11
'-8

" 
FI

N
 F

L
2'

-0
"

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

12
'-4

" 
FI

N
 F

L
11

'-8
" 

FI
N

 F
L

2'
-0

"

11
'-7

" 
FI

N
 F

L

NORTH ELEVATION4
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

SOUTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

10
'-4

"
12

'-4
" 

FI
N

 F
L

11
'-8

" 
FI

N
 F

L
2'

-0
"

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

PARTIAL SOUTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

100 LEVEL

200 LEVEL

ATTIC LEVEL

GRADE

000 LEVEL

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION2
1/8"=1'-0" [REF:      ]

NORTH ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"1

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION
1/2" = 1'-0"2

PARTIAL NORTH ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"3

SOUTH ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"4

PARTIAL SOUTH ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"5

PARTIAL SOUTH ELEVAITON
1/2" = 1'-0"6

LPC 
Agenda Packet p. 12

LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



3

1

SCALE:  FULL

SCALE:  FULL

SCALE:  FULL

2

11111 CANAL ROAD • CINCINNATI, OH 45241 • PH: 800-445-5411, 513-559-1212 • FAX: 513-559-1883 • www.alliedwindow.com • info@alliedwindow.com

HEAD DETAIL1

JAMB DETAIL2

OPENING WIDTH

DEEP GUIDE CHANNEL

BOTTOM RAIL OF THE
EXISTING WINDOWS'
TOP SASH

AC
TU

AL
 S

C
R

EE
N

 H
EI

G
H

T 
IS

 M
EA

SU
R

ED
 T

O
BO

TT
O

M
 O

F 
PU

TT
Y 

LI
N

E 
O

N
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 S
AS

H

SCREEN MESH

STAINLESS STEEL
LIFT HANDLE

SCREEN FRAMING
(S-102)

SILL DETAIL3

PRODUCT
1/2 SCREEN  -  DROP-IN
S-102 FRAMING

DWG. NO.

I-3 Allied Window
Performance Panels™

IN
TE

R
IO

R

INTERIOR INTERIOR

IN
TE

R
IO

R

0" 1/2" 1"

Graphic Scale

ATTACHMENT #3

LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



1

1

1

SCALE:  FULL
HEAD and SILL SIMILAR

JAMB DETAIL1

SCREEN FRAMING  (S-102)

VINYL SCREEN SPLINE

ALUMINUM MESH SCREENING
MANY CHOICES AVAILABLE INCLUDING

FIBERGLASS, STAINLESS STEEL,
COPPER AND BRONZE WIRE MESH

SOLID ALUMINUM CORNER
MECHANICALLY STAKED IN PLACE

CORNER DETAIL

SPRING DETAIL

HANDLE DETAIL

STAINLESS STEEL HANDLE
RIVETED IN PLACE

STAINLESS STEEL
LEAF-TENSION SPRING
HOOKED INTO CUSTOM

NOTCHED FRAME SECTION

ANGLE BUILD-OUT
SIZE AS REQUIRED

PRODUCT
BUILD-OUT SCREEN
S-102 FRAMING

DWG. NO.

I-7 Allied Window
Performance Panels™

similar

similar

0.3750"

0" 1/2" 1"

Graphic Scale

11111 CANAL ROAD • CINCINNATI, OH 45241 • PH: 800-445-5411, 513-559-1212 • FAX: 513-559-1883 • www.alliedwindow.com • info@alliedwindow.com

LPC Agenda Packet p. 14



0" 1/2" 1"

Graphic Scale

SCALE:  FULL

1

3

24

SCALE:  FULL

SCALE:  FULL

SCALE:  FULL

JAMB DETAIL2

SILL DETAIL3

CS-2 TRACK

HEAD DETAIL1

CS-1 TRACK

TRACK
WEATHERSTRIPPING

1 1/4"
S-102 SCREEN FRAME

WOOL PILE
WEATHERSTRIPPING
WITH MYLAR "FIN SEAL"

DEEP GUIDE

SHALLOW GUIDE

1" MEETING
RAIL DETAIL4

PRODUCT
SLIDE - A - WAY,  SAW-2,  1/2 SLIDING SCREEN
TWO PANELS, EITHER ACTIVE

DWG. NO.

S-6 Allied Window
Performance Panels™

11111 CANAL ROAD • CINCINNATI, OH 45241 • PH: 800-445-5411, 513-559-1212 • FAX: 513-559-1883 • www.alliedwindow.com • info@alliedwindow.com

LPC Agenda Packet p. 15



VILLAGE OF WINNETKA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION 

PRELIMINARY REVIEW 
 
TO:   Landmark Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
    
REFERENCE: 74 Brier St.  Case No. 16-14 
 
An application for demolition was received June 8, 2016 for the removal of the single-family 
residence at 74 Brier St.  The residence was built in 1980.  The owners at the time of construction 
were Jami Jennings and Jim Holland; the architect of record was Gus Braun & Associates.  The 
structure is not a national, state, or local designated landmark.  Research by the Winnetka Historical 
Society does not show that this home has historic architectural significance or evidence of significant 
ownership.  

In accordance with Section 15.52.040 of the Village Code, the Commission is required to determine 
whether the building and/or property is of sufficient historic or architectural merit to warrant  
conducting an HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  Upon completing the preliminary 
historic and architectural review, the LPC shall enter preliminary findings on the issue of whether the 
demolition permit application affects a building or property that has sufficient architectural or 
historic merit to warrant conducting a full HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  In 
making its determination, the LPC shall consider the following: 

1. The preliminary property history study (information on the original building, date of 
construction, name of property, architect and owner, current photographs of the property, list 
of work on the property for which the Village has issued a permit); 

2. Comments of the Winnetka Historical Society; 
3. Any other information, comment or evidence received by the LPC at the preliminary review 

meeting. 
 
If the LPC finds that the HAIS is warranted, it shall so notify the Director of Community 
Development and shall order the applicant to conduct such study. 
 
If the LPC finds that an HAIS is not warranted, it shall notify the Director of Community 
Development that it finds no historic or architectural grounds for delaying the demolition.  The 
preliminary determination of the LPC shall be supported by findings of fact based on the record.  The 
findings of fact shall include statements as to whether or not the building or property has 
architectural merit, historical significance, both, or neither.   
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



The LPC shall require an HAIS for any demolition permit application that meets any of the following 
criteria: 
 
1. The property or structures have been designated a landmark pursuant to Chapter 15.64 of the 

Village Code; 
2. The property or structures have been included in the most recent Illinois Historic Structure 

Survey conducted under the auspices of the Illinois Department of Conservation; 
3. The property or structures have been listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the 

Illinois Register of Historic places; and 
4. The property or structures have sufficient architectural or historical merit to warrant a full 

HAIS prior to issuance of a demolition permit. 
   
The Director of Community Development may delay the issuance of a demolition permit for up to 60 
days if one or more building or demolition permits for primary structures have been approved for 
properties, for which work is continuing, on either side of the right-of-way block face and/or alley 
along which the property is located, or if the Director determines that a delay is necessary to prevent 
undue congestion and noise impacts in the neighborhood.  Currently, there are no building or 
demolition permits for new primary structures on the block.  The Director has determined that a 
delay is not necessary to prevent undue congestion and noise impacts within the neighborhood. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



 Village of Winnetka 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date:  June 14, 2016 
 
To:  Winnetka Historical Society 
 
From:  Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 
 

The Landmark Preservation Commission will consider a request to demolish the primary structure located 

at 74 Brier St. on July 14, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.  Please return any available information regarding the 

architectural or historical significance of this structure to my attention on or before July 6.  If you have any 

questions please send e-mail to aklaassen@winnetka.org or call me at 716.3525. 

Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records: 
 
Building Permits Issued: 
 
Date Type Owner Architect 
08.18.1980 Construct residence with attached 

garage. 
Jami Jennings/Jim 
Holland 

Gus Braun & Assoc. 

04.13.1981 Construct solar collector on roof of 
residence. 

Jami Jennings/Jim 
Holland 

N/A 

 
 
Other Pertinent Village Documentation/Information:   
 
Winnetka Historical Society Response:  Research does not show that this home has historic architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership. 

By:  P. Van Cleave  Date:  07.05.2016 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



74 Brier St. 

 

 

 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



From: Annette Findling
To: Ann Klaassen
Subject: 74 Brier Street
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 5:50:58 PM

Ann,

I received your letter notifying us of demolition.  I can't believe you actually have to
hold a Preservation meeting regarding this property.  Have any of you even driven
by?  better yet, why don't you walk inside? Our whole neighborhood can't wait to
have this terrible eye sore and hazardous property demolished.  This property has
been HAZARDOUS to our neighborhood and you have to waste time and hold a
meeting???  

I have lived here for 15 years and have had to put up with that terrible property. 
Whenever I have asked for permits to do nothing but improve my property, I get
nothing but a hassle and charged a lot  of money for permits etc.  

I am not able to attend this meeting but you can sure put my comments in your
kitty.  Typical government...the good citizens never get a break while the rats that
live at 74 Brier Street continue to feed off us and seem to get their rights.

Annette

-- 
Annette Findling
Please note my new address is 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 14

mailto:annette.findling@gmail.com
mailto:AKlaassen@winnetka.org


VILLAGE OF WINNETKA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION 

PRELIMINARY REVIEW 
 
TO:   Landmark Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
    
REFERENCE: 949 Spruce St.  Case No. 16-15 
 
An application for demolition was received June 8, 2016 for the removal of the single-family 
residence and detached garage at 949 Spruce St.  The original date of construction is unknown.  The 
first record in Village files is of the sewer connection in 1916.  The structure is not a national, state, 
or local designated landmark.  Research by the Winnetka Historical Society does not show that this 
home has historic architectural significance or evidence of significant ownership.  

In accordance with Section 15.52.040 of the Village Code, the Commission is required to determine 
whether the building and/or property is of sufficient historic or architectural merit to warrant  
conducting an HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  Upon completing the preliminary 
historic and architectural review, the LPC shall enter preliminary findings on the issue of whether the 
demolition permit application affects a building or property that has sufficient architectural or 
historic merit to warrant conducting a full HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  In 
making its determination, the LPC shall consider the following: 

1. The preliminary property history study (information on the original building, date of 
construction, name of property, architect and owner, current photographs of the property, list 
of work on the property for which the Village has issued a permit); 

2. Comments of the Winnetka Historical Society; 
3. Any other information, comment or evidence received by the LPC at the preliminary review 

meeting. 
 
If the LPC finds that the HAIS is warranted, it shall so notify the Director of Community 
Development and shall order the applicant to conduct such study. 
 
If the LPC finds that an HAIS is not warranted, it shall notify the Director of Community 
Development that it finds no historic or architectural grounds for delaying the demolition.  The 
preliminary determination of the LPC shall be supported by findings of fact based on the record.  The 
findings of fact shall include statements as to whether or not the building or property has 
architectural merit, historical significance, both, or neither.   
 
The LPC shall require an HAIS for any demolition permit application that meets any of the following 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



criteria: 
 
1. The property or structures have been designated a landmark pursuant to Chapter 15.64 of the 

Village Code; 
2. The property or structures have been included in the most recent Illinois Historic Structure 

Survey conducted under the auspices of the Illinois Department of Conservation; 
3. The property or structures have been listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the 

Illinois Register of Historic places; and 
4. The property or structures have sufficient architectural or historical merit to warrant a full 

HAIS prior to issuance of a demolition permit. 
   
The Director of Community Development may delay the issuance of a demolition permit for up to 60 
days if one or more building or demolition permits for primary structures have been approved for 
properties, for which work is continuing, on either side of the right-of-way block face and/or alley 
along which the property is located, or if the Director determines that a delay is necessary to prevent 
undue congestion and noise impacts in the neighborhood.  Currently, there is one active building 
permit for a new primary structure on the block (932 Spruce).  When the building permit is approved 
for 949 Spruce, the Director will review the construction activity on the block to determine whether a 
delay is necessary to prevent undue congestion and noise impacts within the neighborhood. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



 Village of Winnetka 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date:  June 14, 2016 
 
To:  Winnetka Historical Society 
 
From:  Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 
 

The Landmark Preservation Commission will consider a request to demolish the primary structure located 

at 949 Spruce St. on July 14, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.  Please return any available information regarding the 

architectural or historical significance of this structure to my attention on or before July 6.  If you have any 

questions please send e-mail to aklaassen@winnetka.org or call me at 716.3525. 

Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records: 
 
Building Permits Issued: 
 
Date Type Owner Architect 
1916 Sewer connection. N/A N/A 
04.12.1996 Construct 2-story addition and 

remodel kitchen. 
Mr. & Mrs. James 
Gotta 

Interface Planning & 
Design 

02.05.2015 Rebuild detached  
garage on existing foundation. 

James Gotta John Roberson 

 
 
Other Pertinent Village Documentation/Information:   
 
Winnetka Historical Society Response:  Research does not show that this home has historic architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership. 

By:  P. Van Cleave  Date:  07.05.2016 

   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 14



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 15



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 16



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 17



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 18



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 19



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 20



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 21



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 22



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 23



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 24



949 Spruce St. 

 

 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 25



 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 26



VILLAGE OF WINNETKA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION 

PRELIMINARY REVIEW 
 
TO:   Landmark Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
    
REFERENCE: 333 Willow Rd.  Case No. 16-16 
 
An application for demolition was received June 14, 2016 for the removal of the single-family 
residence at 333 Willow Rd.  The residence was built in 1964.  The owners at the time of 
construction were Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Hunt and the architect of record was Edward Marks.  The 
structure is not a national, state, or local designated landmark.  Research by the Winnetka Historical 
Society does not show that this home has historic architectural significance or evidence of significant 
ownership.  

In accordance with Section 15.52.040 of the Village Code, the Commission is required to determine 
whether the building and/or property is of sufficient historic or architectural merit to warrant  
conducting an HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  Upon completing the preliminary 
historic and architectural review, the LPC shall enter preliminary findings on the issue of whether the 
demolition permit application affects a building or property that has sufficient architectural or 
historic merit to warrant conducting a full HAIS prior to issuance of the demolition permit.  In 
making its determination, the LPC shall consider the following: 

1. The preliminary property history study (information on the original building, date of 
construction, name of property, architect and owner, current photographs of the property, list 
of work on the property for which the Village has issued a permit); 

2. Comments of the Winnetka Historical Society; 
3. Any other information, comment or evidence received by the LPC at the preliminary review 

meeting. 
 
If the LPC finds that the HAIS is warranted, it shall so notify the Director of Community 
Development and shall order the applicant to conduct such study. 
 
If the LPC finds that an HAIS is not warranted, it shall notify the Director of Community 
Development that it finds no historic or architectural grounds for delaying the demolition.  The 
preliminary determination of the LPC shall be supported by findings of fact based on the record.  The 
findings of fact shall include statements as to whether or not the building or property has 
architectural merit, historical significance, both, or neither.   
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



 2 

The LPC shall require an HAIS for any demolition permit application that meets any of the following 
criteria: 
 
1. The property or structures have been designated a landmark pursuant to Chapter 15.64 of the 

Village Code; 
2. The property or structures have been included in the most recent Illinois Historic Structure 

Survey conducted under the auspices of the Illinois Department of Conservation; 
3. The property or structures have been listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the 

Illinois Register of Historic places; and 
4. The property or structures have sufficient architectural or historical merit to warrant a full 

HAIS prior to issuance of a demolition permit. 
   
The Director of Community Development may delay the issuance of a demolition permit for up to 60 
days if one or more building or demolition permits for primary structures have been approved for 
properties, for which work is continuing, on either side of the right-of-way block face and/or alley 
along which the property is located, or if the Director determines that a delay is necessary to prevent 
undue congestion and noise impacts in the neighborhood.  Currently, there are no building or 
demolition permits for new primary structures on the block.  The Director has determined that a 
delay is not necessary to prevent undue congestion and noise impacts within the neighborhood. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



 Village of Winnetka 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date:  June 15, 2016 
 
To:  Winnetka Historical Society 
 
From:  Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 
 

The Landmark Preservation Commission will consider a request to demolish the primary structure located 

at 333 Willow Rd. on July 14, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.  Please return any available information regarding the 

architectural or historical significance of this structure to my attention on or before July 6.  If you have any 

questions please send e-mail to aklaassen@winnetka.org or call me at 716.3525. 

Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records: 
 
Building Permits Issued: 
 
Date Type Owner Architect 
11.17.1964 Construct a single family residence. Mr. & Mrs. Robert E. 

Hunt 
Edward Marks 

06.13.1994 Remodel and construct addition to 
residence. 

Mr. & Mrs. James D. 
Pinkerton 

Rowe & Johnson 

 
 
Other Pertinent Village Documentation/Information:   
 
Winnetka Historical Society Response:  Research does not show that this home has historic architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership. 

By:  P. Van Cleave  Date:  07.05.2016 

   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



From: Heritage Luxury Homes
To: Ann Klaassen
Subject: 333 willow hearing for demo
Date: Tuesday, June 14, 2016 4:25:14 PM

I will be out of country on July 14,2016
My Lawer Mitchem Rochum represent me
Leo Birov

Sent from my iPhone

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 14

mailto:info@heritageluxury.com
mailto:AKlaassen@winnetka.org


 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 15



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 16



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 17



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 18



  06.14.2016 
 

333 Willow Rd. 

 

 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 19



VILLAGE OF WINNETKA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
HAIS REVIEW 

IMPACT DETERMINATION MEETING 
 

TO:   Landmark Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
 
REFERENCE: 1035 Sheridan Rd. - Case Number 16-11 
 
At the June 6, 2016 meeting the Commission found there was sufficient architectural merit to 
warrant a Historical Architectural Impact Study (HAIS).  An HAIS by Architectural Historian Jean 
L. Guarino, Ph.D. was submitted June 16, 2016. 
 
It is the duty of the LPC to determine whether the HAIS is complete and if so whether the proposed 
demolition will result either in the loss of a building or structure that is of historic or architectural 
significance or in the significant alteration of the architectural character of the immediate 
neighborhood.       
 
The Winnetka Historical Society has reviewed the HAIS and found the study complete and is in 
agreement with the findings. 
   
In accordance with Section 15.52.060 of the Village Code, the Commission is to enter findings on 
the following issues: 

a. whether the HAIS is complete; 
b. whether the proposed demolition will have a significant negative architectural or 

historical impact on either the Village as a whole or on the immediate neighborhood; and 
c. whether demolition should be delayed in order to explore alternatives to total demolition. 

 
In making its determination, the LPC shall consider the following: 

a. the HAIS;  
b. the preliminary property history study; 
c. comments of the Winnetka Historical Society on the HAIS; 
d. any other information, comment or evidence received by the LPC at the impact 

determination meeting or at the preliminary review meeting. 
 
The determination of the LPC shall be supported by findings of fact based on the entire record. 
 
If the LPC determines that the HAIS filed by the applicant is incomplete or otherwise insufficient to 
enable the LPC to make a determination as to the impact of the proposed demolition, the LPC may 
direct the applicant to complete, amend or supplement the report and may continue the impact 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



determination meeting pending the applicant’s filing of a complete application.   
 
A building or structure shall be considered to be historically or architecturally significant if the LPC 
determines that it meets one or more of the following standards: 
 

a. the structure exhibits a high quality of architectural design without regard to the time 
built or historic associations; 

b. the structure exhibits a high quality of architectural design that is not the result of a 
change or a series of changes in the original structure; 

c. the structure exemplifies an architectural style, construction technique or building type 
once common in the Village; 

d. the structure exhibits an unusual, distinctive or eccentric design or construction technique 
that contributes to the architectural interest of its environs as an accent or counterpart; or 

e. that the property has been designated a landmark pursuant to Chapter 15.64 of the 
Village Code, has been included in the most recent Illinois Historic Structure Survey 
conducted under the auspices of the Illinois Department of Conservation, or has been 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the Illinois Register of Historic 
Places.   

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



 Village of Winnetka 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date:  May 6, 2016 
 
To:  Winnetka Historical Society 
 
From:  Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 
 

The Landmark Preservation Commission will consider a request to demolish the primary structure located 

at 1035 Sheridan Rd. on June 6, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.  Please return any available information regarding the 

architectural or historical significance of this structure to my attention on or before May 26.  If you have 

any questions please send e-mail to aklaassen@winnetka.org or call me at 716.3525. 

Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records: 
 
Building Permits Issued: 
 
Date Type Owner Architect 
01.21.1956 Construct split-level residence. Mr. & Mrs. Lafayette 

Fisher 
Henry L. Newhouse 

10.07.1965 Make interior alteration to 
residence. 

Guy Ederheimer Owner 

01.23.1987 Build a monolithic reinforced 
concrete swimming pool. 

Mr. & Mrs. Judd 
Malkin 

Marvin Herman 

06.05.1987 Make alterations and add to 
residence. 

Judd Malkin Marvin Herman Assoc. 

 
 
Other Pertinent Village Documentation/Information:   
 
Winnetka Historical Society Response:  Research does not show that this home has historic architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership. 

By:  P. Van Cleave  Date:  05.26.2016 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 14



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 15



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 16



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 17



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 18



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 19



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 20



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 21



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 22



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 23



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 24



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 25



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 26



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 27



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 28



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 29



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 30



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 31



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 32



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 33



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 34



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 35



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 36



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 37



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 38



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 39



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 40



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 41



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 42



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 43



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 44



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 45



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 46



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 47



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 48



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 49



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 50



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 51



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 52



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 53



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 54



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 55



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 56



VILLAGE OF WINNETKA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

 
HAIS REVIEW 

IMPACT DETERMINATION MEETING 
 

TO:   Landmark Preservation Commission 
 
FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 

 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
 
REFERENCE: 560 Oak St. - Case Number 16-12 
 
At the June 6, 2016 meeting the Commission found there was sufficient historical and architectural 
merit to warrant a Historical Architectural Impact Study (HAIS).  An HAIS by Architectural 
Historian Jean L. Guarino, Ph.D. was submitted June 16, 2016. 
 
It is the duty of the LPC to determine whether the HAIS is complete and if so whether the proposed 
demolition will result either in the loss of a building or structure that is of historic or architectural 
significance or in the significant alteration of the architectural character of the immediate 
neighborhood.       
 
The Winnetka Historical Society has reviewed the HAIS and found the study complete and is in 
agreement with the findings. 
   
In accordance with Section 15.52.060 of the Village Code, the Commission is to enter findings on 
the following issues: 

a. whether the HAIS is complete; 
b. whether the proposed demolition will have a significant negative architectural or 

historical impact on either the Village as a whole or on the immediate neighborhood; and 
c. whether demolition should be delayed in order to explore alternatives to total demolition. 

 
In making its determination, the LPC shall consider the following: 

a. the HAIS;  
b. the preliminary property history study; 
c. comments of the Winnetka Historical Society on the HAIS; 
d. any other information, comment or evidence received by the LPC at the impact 

determination meeting or at the preliminary review meeting. 
 
The determination of the LPC shall be supported by findings of fact based on the entire record. 
 
If the LPC determines that the HAIS filed by the applicant is incomplete or otherwise insufficient to 
enable the LPC to make a determination as to the impact of the proposed demolition, the LPC may 
direct the applicant to complete, amend or supplement the report and may continue the impact 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 1



determination meeting pending the applicant’s filing of a complete application.   
 
A building or structure shall be considered to be historically or architecturally significant if the LPC 
determines that it meets one or more of the following standards: 
 

a. the structure exhibits a high quality of architectural design without regard to the time 
built or historic associations; 

b. the structure exhibits a high quality of architectural design that is not the result of a 
change or a series of changes in the original structure; 

c. the structure exemplifies an architectural style, construction technique or building type 
once common in the Village; 

d. the structure exhibits an unusual, distinctive or eccentric design or construction technique 
that contributes to the architectural interest of its environs as an accent or counterpart; or 

e. that the property has been designated a landmark pursuant to Chapter 15.64 of the 
Village Code, has been included in the most recent Illinois Historic Structure Survey 
conducted under the auspices of the Illinois Department of Conservation, or has been 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the Illinois Register of Historic 
Places.   

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 2



 Village of Winnetka 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date:  May 10, 2016 
 
To:  Winnetka Historical Society 
 
From:  Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant 
 

The Landmark Preservation Commission will consider a request to demolish the primary structure located 

at 560 Oak St. on June 6, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.  Please return any available information regarding the 

architectural or historical significance of this structure to my attention on or before May 26.  If you have 

any questions please send e-mail to aklaassen@winnetka.org or call me at 716.3525. 

Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records: 
 
Building Permits Issued: 
 
Date Type Owner Architect 
04.19.1937 Wreck 2-story frame residence. Forest R. Lowrey N/A 
05.03.1937 Construct 2-story brick veneer 

residence. 
Mr. & Mrs. Forest R. 
Lowrey 

Raymond F. Houlihan 

01.17.1928 Build 1-story frame garage. Howard W. Hodgkins Non listed 
02.27.1951 Alter 1-story two-car garage. F. R. Lowrey Owner 
11.05.1976 Construct 2-story addition to 

residence. 
Mr. & Mrs. George Hill None listed 

04.06.1998 Remodel existing bathroom and 
bedroom. 

Susan L. Rice W. Pieczonka 

01.11.2000 Remodel hall bathroom and guest 
bathrooms. 

Susan L. Rice N/A 

03.22.2001 Remodel powder room. Susan L. Rice N/A 

 
 
Other Pertinent Village Documentation/Information:   
 
Winnetka Historical Society Response:  Research does not show that this home has historic architectural 
significance or evidence of significant ownership. 

By:  P. Van Cleave  Date:  05.26.2016 

 

 
 

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 3



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 4



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 5



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 6



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 7



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 8



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 9



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 10



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 11



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 12



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 13



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 14



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 15



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 16



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 17



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 18



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 19



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 20



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 21



From: John Benedetto
To: Ann Klaassen
Subject: opinion for the july 14th meeting
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 12:49:15 PM

Dear village of Winnetka landmark preservation commission,

My name is Dr John Benedetto and I live at .
I happily live in a landmark home and am all for people saving landmark homes.
The 560 Oak property is of no concern to me personally but the notice did prompt me to find out about
the basic rules and procedures and I have to tell you that I am appalled by the village overreach and
lack of respect for personal property rights.

I can’t believe that as a community we have been able to rationalize a $16,000. demolition application
fee as well as a $3k deposit. What is the $16k fee for? What is it spent on? How did we come up with
this number? It seems to me the reason is just that we can!
On top of that we require the applicant to get and pay for their own impact study and then after we
drag our feet they need to wait another 60 days? In case they might change their minds? Has it ever
happened that someone will say after 60 days, glad I waited, I think i’ll just rehab it?
It seems to me that under the guise of "conservation of landmark buildings" we are just gouging people
because we can and I think it shameful.
If the intent is to discourage outside builders from tearing down old homes and building crap, the
market will bear it out. What then is the rational for a local to incur this cost? Why, instead of a random
penalty, (since it doesn’t work) don’t we give incentives to save landmarks at the cost of the community
that will benefit by it. 
Either way, in my opinion its not right and serves no purpose. This is a local government overreach and
invasion of personal property rights akin to extorsion.
Over taxation, over regulation and fees without basis is the bane of our society and I’m ashamed that
we as a community are allowing it it our own back yard.
I think this should be brought to the attention of our community as well as a full accounting of why we
are doing this and how this money is spent.
I would appreciate an official written response to this letter laying out the commissions official position
and rationalization of all the items above.
Both the questions and the official response should be published so that our community understands
what we are doing and why.

Respectfully Dr J Benedetto

 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 22

mailto:docjab@comcast.net
mailto:AKlaassen@winnetka.org


 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 23



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 24



 
LPC Agenda Packet p. 25
































































































	LPC Report- Village Hall Storm Windows  Attachments-- 07-05-16.pdf
	PREPARED BY: Megan E. Pierce, Assistant to the Village Manager
	LPC- Attachment 2.pdf
	Aw-01 [East Elevation]
	1/Aw-01
	2/Aw-01

	VW-att 2.2 NORTH SOUTH ELEVS.pdf
	AW-2 [NORTH AND SOUTH ELEVATIONS]
	1/AW-2
	2/AW-2




	Brier, 74 Agenda Packet_Redacted.pdf
	VILLAGE OF WINNETKA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION
	PRELIMINARY REVIEW
	FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant
	ADP7736.tmp
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records:

	Owner


	Spruce, 949 Agenda Packet_Redacted.pdf
	VILLAGE OF WINNETKA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION
	PRELIMINARY REVIEW
	FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant
	ADPACA8.tmp
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records:

	Owner


	Willow, 333 Agenda Packet_Redacted.pdf
	VILLAGE OF WINNETKA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	NOTICE OF DEMOLITION APPLICATION
	PRELIMINARY REVIEW
	FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant
	ADPA1A9.tmp
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records:

	Owner


	Sheridan, 1035 HAIS Agenda Packet.pdf
	VILLAGE OF WINNETKA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	HAIS REVIEW
	IMPACT DETERMINATION MEETING

	FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant
	ADP36AE.tmp
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records:

	Owner


	Oak, 560 HAIS Agenda Packet_Redacted.pdf
	VILLAGE OF WINNETKA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	HAIS REVIEW
	IMPACT DETERMINATION MEETING

	FROM:   Ann Klaassen, Planning Assistant
	ADP53FF.tmp
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Preliminary Property History Study/Village Hall Records:

	Owner


	07.14.16 LPC Agenda.pdf
	WINNETKA LANDMARK PRESERVATION COMMISSION




